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Progress Became IhC rorerl,lnnfhl to Halliburton Houses, 1601 & 1605 Center Street

the Commercial Neishborhood's

Decline and Eventual Resurrection r 7 g} h ‘]‘
21st

Ragland House, 1617 Center Street
Turner-Fulk House, 1701 Center Street
Pierce House, 1704 Center Street
Population flight to the suburbs, coupled with the mobility provided by Turner-Mann House, 1711 Centet Street
automobiles eventually closed old businesses in the neighborhood commercial et Back House. 1722 Center Street

districts along Arch, Gaines and Main Streets. Manv buildings at the south - = = e
& ; o) Arkansas Governor’s Mansion, 1800 Center Street

19th ST.
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OVERNOR'S

MANSION \
little respect for architeéture and endurance, these new structures invaded

: 18th ST.
the landscape and altered it ... not necessarily for the better. L-—-—---' I 6 -lg

17th ST.

Caruth-Cochran House, 320 W, Eighteenth Street
Old/Methodist Parsonage, 401 W Eighteenth Street
Hamu -Bracy-Barksdale House, 1812 Spring Street

uses. The commercial district on South Main Street fared better, even though

it was cut off from the eentral business district by the path of Interstate 630.
Historic buildings wese demolished and new ones took their nlace. With

J
end of Arch and Gaines were demolished while others found unsuitable D

Rogers House, 400 W hlghtccnl‘h Street

Remmel Flats, 1700 Spring Street

O’Btien House, 323 W Seventeenth Street

Newton House, 202 W. Seventcenth Strect
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Rehabilitation and Revitalization >
Came with Little Fanfare Reclaiming Z é
the Neighborhood’s Historic Spirit 150 ST

Meanwhile, the [,% 25

residential segment has

undergone a steady 5
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Turner-Ledbetter House, 1700 Lotisiana Street

Rossi House, 1716 Louisiana Street

Wilson-Mehatfy House, 2102 Louisiana Street

H Of mbmok House/The Empress,
2120 I ouisiana Street

W. DAISY BATHES BLVD

First Hotze House, 1620 Main Street

rebirth, particularly Hoize House, 1619 Louisiana Street
since 1975 with the
credation of the Capital
Zoning District
Commission. This has

Frese Cottage, 1614 Louisiana Street
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TO 1-630 Murrell-Stone House, 1600 Louisiana Street

Nelson-Auto Company-Southside Garage,
sparked a renewed interest from businesses, and in recent years, commercial 1509 Louisiana Street
activity along Main Street has increased. Endties like Community Bakery and
Juanitas have become highly successful leading the way for other enterprises.
The passionate involvement of the Quapaw Quarter Assocition and other
neighborhood groups have helped the history of Little Rock’s Quapaw Quarter
cofe full circle. Because of the deep commitment of many unwilling to allow
the city to lose its connection with its past, what was once a thriving neighborhood

Turner Twin Houses, 1414 Touisiana Street
1418 Louisiana Street

Abeles Apartment House, 1409 Touisiana Street

90966 Oe06e @9@@@@@@ 9@@0@0@@@O

Fewell-Flickinger-Schmand Hause,
1416 Center Street '
Winfield Memorial Methodist Church,
1500 Center Street

)

has returned to its former glory.

TO EXIT TOUR IHI: You are at the corner of Center
and 15th Street, murn left onto 15th Street and take it two |

gt o %twfdu:g/ A

i
C. 191 {
§ ommumiy Bakery | blocks to Broadway. Turn right onto Broadway ... 1-630 is |
129) e s s five blocks North/Right.




Progress Marched In Under the
Guise of Utilities, Paved Streets
& SKyscrapers, Forever
Changing the City

By 1900 a thorough transformation had taken place. Litte
Rock enjoved a full array of citvimprovements: street railways,
water and sewer systems, electricity, telephones, and paved
streets, Literally thousands of new buildings had been
constructed changing the landscape. The first skyscraper
reached for the heavens ... all ten, steel framework stories!
A 1929 edition of the Arkansas Gagette newspaper
proclaimed, “Modern architecture has played a big part in
aiving to Little Rock its metropolitan appearance.” The same
newspaper article proclaimed Little Rock’s skyline as “ahead
of the times” A new era was born ushering in a more
cosmopolitan, but infinitely stylish, way of living and doing
business. So, relax a litde, roll down the window and catch a
breeze ...

and C. amfz,éelex youwr tauwr af/
Histaric Little “Rack.
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Arvkansas C({‘:ffwemmx s Mansion
_ C. 1047-50
|7 1800 Cenler Street

On the Cover: The Governor’s Mansion lends its name to
the historic district surrounding it, even though it is one of
the neighborhood’s newest additions. It does, however,

occupy a very historic site, originally the location of

“Rosewood,” a 1840s country estate. The site was also home
to the Arkansas School for the Blind from 1869 until 1939.
Mansion design is a latter-day version of the Colonial Revival
style, reportedly chosen to complement the Greek Revival
architecture of the Old State House, Arkansas’s

first state capitol built 1833-42, at the northern
end of Center Street. The newly completed
Governor’s Mansion was occupied in
February of 1950 by Governor and Mrs. Sid
McMath. The Mansion has since housed

all of Arkansas’s first families including

the 42" President of the United States,

Bill Clinton, who served as Governor

for twelve vears, 1979-81 and 1983-93.

Built as rental houses
for Tom Halliburton, a
conductor for the
Missouri Pacific
Railroad, the twin
houses have an urban
townhouse appearance
not typical of Little
Rock. The fact that

they are identical sets

allibeoton Dlouses
C. 1905
1601 & 1605 Center Sireet

them apart from othet
historic houses In the

city. Designed in the
Colonial Revival style,
they are long and narrow. Toward the rear of each house are
two-story cutaway bays — throwbacks to the Queen Anne
period - that add interest. The houses demonstrate that rental
property was a perfectly respectable addition to this turn of
the century neighborhood.
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Twenty-one year old
architect,  Charles
Thompson, designed
this fanciful residence
in the Queen Anne
style for Mr. & Mrs.
William Ragland. The
house has the irregular

shape and textural
i variety  commonly
Ragland House

C. 1889 | Anpe, along with
1617 Center Street

associated with Queen

millwork-trimmed porches

and stained-glass windows.
After the Raglands moved in the late 1890s, Mrs. Ragland’s
parents, Edmond and Henrietta Urguhart, made the house
their residence.  Urquhart was a highly successful New York
businessman who retired to this house until his death in 1905.
It remained in the family until 1958, and has always been a
single-family residence.

Miss Sue €. Turner hired

B R R
Charles Thompson to s

build a very grand “spec”
house, something that
hadn’t previously been
done in Little Rock. They
obviously had well-to-do
buyers in mind. Designed
in the Colonial Revival
style with a Dutch
Colonial gambrel roof, the
house is large and well

%R{M/&- g&r% 9{0&(&2/
. 1903-04
1701 Q_Jenlr::r_ Shreet

detailed. The classical portico

the Right Reveréend
Henry Niles Pierce,
founder of Trinity
Episcopal Cathedral,
the Pierce House is
one of the oldest
houses still standing in

the Governot’s
Mansion  Historic
District. A simple Piorce Hause

builder’s version of the C. 1881
Italianate style, the Pierce 1704 Center Street

House is the only house

in the district with the bracketed eaves that are the hallmarks
of the style. It originally stood on the southwest corner of
17th and Center Streets, but at the turn-of-the-century, it
was moved a short distance to the south. The house was
turned so that the original front door is on the north side,
away from the street. The Colonial Revival porch was built
at the time of the move,

b alides L 8 Y The Turner-Mann
house, built specula-
tively by Miss Sue
Turner, is one of Little
Rock’s few examples
ot the Prairie Style, an
architectural style
popularized by Frank
Lloyd Wright. After
its completion, the
house initially was rented

. CC";%M Y -‘?’}?W- House

C. 1905 | to tenants, including archi-

I711 Center Street | tect George Mann and his

is its most imposing exterior

feature; inside, it has a third-floor ballroom. In the hands of
several owners between 1904-1920, it was purchased by
Augustus Fulk, an attorney and Circuit Judge. He maintained
the house undl 1953 when it became a convent for the nuns
who operated a school located in the house at 1711 Center,
Purchased for rehabilitation in 1979, it suffered a major fire
in 1981 and was rebuilt from original drawings.

family, who eventually
bought the house in 1913. Mann was a prominent architect
whose designs included the Arkansas State Capitol, the
Gazette Building, and the Boyle Building, He owned the
house until his death in 1939, The Catholic Church purchased
the house in 1957, along with three others in this block, for
use as a school, It suffered numerous alterations untl it was
rehabilitated into a single family home in 1987,



Constructed in 1884-85
for Realtor W. J. Turner,
this house was the first
large architect-designed
residence in what is now
the Governor’s Mansion
neighborhood.
Originally a rambling,
red-brick Queen Anne,
the house was

Guner-ack House
C. 1884-85
1722 Center Strect

extensively remodeled in
the Craftsman styvle about
1917 for Gus Lyon, vice-

president of a wholesale

hardware company and builder of the L.yon House at 1710
Center. When Lyon died unexpectedly in 1918, his family
moved back next door and sold their newly-remodeled home
to William Back, a partner in a dry goods business. The
Back family owned the house through the 1940s. Divided
into apartments in the 1950s, the house was purchased for
rehabilitation in 1992 and returned to single-family use.

Unless otherwise noted,
all structures shown are
privately-owned
residences or businesses
and are not open to
the public.

Built for attorney George
Caruth, this picturesque
house was originally a
mixture of Italianate,
Gothic Revival and
Queen Anne styles.
Extensive remodeling
between 1905-1913 left
the basic house shape and

roofline intact but

Caruth-Coclran Douse
C. 1882 with Colonial Revival

replaced many features

320 W. Eighteenth Street styling. The Caruth’s

daughter, Nannie, attended the Arkansas School for the Blind,
located across the street where the Governot’s Mansion now
stands. H.IKK. Cochran bought the house in the late 1890%
and it remained in his family until 1960. After that, it
experienced a deep decline but was rescued and rehabilitated
in 1978,

This house was built to

i m.%ﬁcf B

serve as the parsonage
for First Methodist
Church in downtown
Littdde Rock. Architect
John Parks Almand,
who also designed Little
Rock Central High
School, designed the
house in the classic

Georgian style. George | @ld Wethodist Pax &mt.ag,é
Burden, a Hot Springs . 1927

contractor who also 401 W. Eighteenth Street

built the Arlington

Hortel, was hired by the church to execute the plans. Burden
was well known for his attention to detail and his refusal to
compromise. On a routine inspection during the
construction, he reportedly took a crowbar and tore out some
flooring that he felt had been improperly laid. He then
instructed the workmen to do the job properly or he would
tear it out again. In 1966, the church built a new parsonage
and the house was sold to private owners as a single-family
residence.
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-~ w This house artfully

combines elements of

three architectural
styles — Iralianate,
Colonial Revival and
Craftsman. Originally
located further north,
facing 18" Street, the
house was partially
destroyed by fire in

Slane ,‘_eﬁgw;%%s‘g ot 1912,

It was then

Maiiso moved to its present
c 1882 . location facing Spring
1812 Spring Street { | Street and rebuilt. W F.

Bracy, who owned

Bracy Brothers Hardware Store, bought the house in 1905
and remained in residence until his death in 1938, The
Barksdale family bought the house, which by then had been
converted to a duplex. They remained in the house for 48
vears. The present owners purchased it in 1986 and began
an extensive rehabilitation returning the house once again
to a single-family residence,

The Rogers house is a
large American Fout-
squate (square, two-
story with hipped roof),
with Craftsman details
such as exposed rafter
ends and decorative
braces under the eaves
“of the gabled dormers.
Architect  Charles
Thompson  added
Colonial

__ ciols
L0 W Eighicenth Steet |

Rewvival
clements like the

classical portico and balustrades beneath the second-story
windows. Some Craftsman and Colonial Revival features are
piled on top of one another, such as the balustrade around
the top of the portico which neatly obscures the Craftsman
dormers. In 1940, the house sold and became a home-office
for a chiropractor, From 1960-1982 it was the Elizabeth
Mitchell Children’s Center, then rehabilitated as private home
in 1982,

Charles Thompson
designed this structure
for - Harmon &/l
Remmel, a successful
insurance executive.
Remmel Flats, a duplex
consisting of one unit
on each of two floors,
was the first multi-

family dwelling built in B e
the neighborhood now | Remmel Hats
known as the Governor’s C. 1906
Mansion Historic District. 700 Spring Street

The denticulate cornice

and classical porch columns are good examples of the
Colonial Revival style. Itis interesting that in designing what
may have been the neighborhood’s fitst duplex, Thompson
made no effort to conceal its multi-family use, but made it
apparent by incorporating two front doots and two potches.
Today, one flat setrves as an architect’s office and the other is
a rented residence,




ﬁaue/mows/ C?%amsiaw
@Wb é’zeccmw tff’c@w were

H uacw’t/t/ffat&pwse;wmdag/
u make/u&onﬂq/taafmumafztﬁez

Originally a one-story,
L-shaped cottage with
little ornamentation
other than bracketed
porch columns, the

those built in the carly
1880’s neighborhood.
By the 1890s, PJ.
Sl e ’Brien’s success as a
@ Vvien HHouse | tailor enabled him to

C. 1882-83 | enlarge and remodel the
323 W. Seventeenth Street

| house, creating the two-

story. Queen Anne-style
residence that exists today. The original porch, with its
bracketed columns, remains intact. Members of the O’Brien
family lived on in the house until 1946 when it was divided
into apartments. In 1977-78, it underwent extensive
rehabilitation and was returned to use as a single-family
residence.

house was typical of

e Ll

e | 1 S ¥

The Newton House
dates from about
1885, when it was
built to serve as the
office of the U.'S.
Corps of Engineers
in Little Rock. From
1900 until the early
1970s, it was the
home of the family
of Ernest C. Newton, Newtan House

a postal worker. The 6 1885
202 W. Seventeenth Street

house’s  relatively

small size is due to the

fact that it was an office, squeezed into the back yard of
the Corps chief, Capt. Henry S. Taber, who lived at 1624
Louisiana. As a family cottage is a charming example of
the period, demonstrating that not all families lived on a
grand scale.

This Queen Anne-
stvle house was one
of the large, costly
residences built
during “the late
1880s-early 1890s
that helped
transform the
neighborhood
from a dominant
popuhii(m of

Bumer-Ledbetter House
C. 1891-92
1700 Louisiana Sireel

' shopkeepers and clerks
. into an enclave of the
city’s upper-middle-class. Another speculative house by
Sue C. Turner, it joined about a half dozen other large

brick houses in setting a higher standard of construction
in what was then known as the Blind School
neighborhood. After its completion, the Turner-
Ledbetter House was rented for several vears to vatious

prominent tenants and was sold in 1903 to Mr. and Mrs.

C. R. Ledbetter. A single-family residence until the 1960s,
the house was later allowed to deteriorate and then
abandoned. It was purchased for rehabilitation in 1980.



This Colonial
Revival house, with
Craftsman
mfluences, was built
in 1905 for Joseph
Rossi, an TItalian
immigrant  who
owned a saloon at
800 S. Main Street.
T PR Rossi was martied to
“Rassi House | Emma Satlo, whose father

: C. 1905 | Frank and uncle Joseph were
- 1716 Louisiana Street 5

also saloonkeepers (Joseph
Sarlo built three rental
cottages near 13" and Spring Street). After Prohibition
forced a career change, Rosst began work as a real estate
agent. Rossi died in an automobile accident in 1927, but
his widow continued to live at the house until her death in
the mid-1950s. The couple had no children, and a nephew,
Joseph Satlo, inherited the house. The Sarlo family lived
in the house until 1976. The house has remained relatively
intact and unaltered over the years, but has seen some

minor restoration and updating to accommodate the needs
of modern life.

A L8 9 LT L8 m

William T. Wilson, for
whom the house was

built, was a partner in a
grocery business. He
occupied the house until
the late 1890s. Around
1902, Tom M. Mchaffy,
a prominent lawyer who
later served as an
Associate Justice of the
i Arkansas Supreme Court,

. 1883 !

5102 lDUlSIana Street Jr pur-.,h'lsul the house. It

his death in 1944. During Mehaffy’s long occupancy, the

house was remodeled and enlarged on at least two occasions
when Mehatfy and his wife engaged the services of Charles
Thompson. The existing Colonial Revival porch is the result
of one of the remodelings and apparently was very successful
because this is the house fagade with the famous porch from
the TV series “Evening Shade.”

careen in the 1880s and 1890s as'
chomd&mdw&t&tﬁeg/awmd

W@WW@W wanging frony
grand Villa, Wame and

Homibrnook House to mare

The Hornibrook 3
House, known as |
The Empress of |
Little Rock Small
Luxury Hotel, is §
the most flam- 1
boyant example of §
Gothic Queen Ann |
style regionally. All §
W nmribraslh D oiice | characteristics are |

: C. 1888 incorporated: an
The Empress of Little Rock irregular floor plan,
Small Luxury Hotel

. - : ratiety of surface |
2020 Lodlslena Steat | 7T 0 A |

textures — wood,

stucco, brick, stone, terra-cotta — an expansive f
wraparound porch trimmed with millwork, an imposing |
turret and multi-gabled roofline and decorative small-
paned windows. A stained-glass skylight is one of the |
highlights of the interior. The house has lived through 3§
numerous incarnations but managed to survive with an §
extetior virtually unchanged, including the original iron
fence and gate. In the 1990s, the house was returned to
its full glory and is now a private home and award winning
bed and breakfast. Tours to the public are available §
Monday-Friday 11:30 A.M. and 3:00 PM. Groups |
welcome by appointment. Fot information call 501-374- §

7966.




Following the Civil War,
Peter Hotze and John
(. Fletcher went into
partnership establishing
a general mercantile

business that became

Pre=in, early prosperity, Hotze
119 ¢ ' :

7 i g kiR T W B built the one-story

ol o 1575 | frame house when he
Jinst Motz | was married in 1868. In
1620 t;_lhl.fr?i”&e] | its floor plan, the First

| Hotze House is like its

Hatze House éantebe]ium
C. 1900 predecessors; however,

1619 Louisiana Stieet the trim indicates that
Pl e the new ltalianate styvle
had arrived in Little
Rock. It is evident on
the porch columns and
btackets under the
eaves. At the time the
house was built, the
area was considered
rural with Main Street
resembling a country
road. Hotze later left Little Rock for New York in 1873, but
retained ownership of the home and surrounding property.
The house you see today is the result of a high quality
restoration effort, completed in 2003,

The Hotze House was spectacularly designed by Charles
Thompson as Peter Hotze’s “retitfement home” upon his
return to Little Rock after nearly 30 sticcessful years in New
York. The Colonial Revival exterior was inspired by Georgian
architecture, as seen in features such as the broken pediment
over the front door and the balustrade around the top of
the hipped roof. As imposing as it was, the exterior hardly
matched the grandeur of the interior. Owned and occupied
by members of the Hotze family until Petet’s son’s death in
1972, the house was afterward seriously neglected until it
was later rescued and restored as one of the neighborhood’s
first Histotic Inns. Today, it is a private home.

Duting the early days
of neighborhood
development, many
wooden clapboard
probably
looked very much hike
the Irese Cottage,

houses

however, now, it is

one of just a few

remaining Intact.

J. F o' . 2 y

Hese Cotlage Built by Caldwell Bradshaw, it
C. 1882

164 Louisiana Street

was sold around 1890 to Mrs.
Mary F'rese and her son, John

Henry Frese. Mrs. Frese was a
partaner in Sparks and Frese, a “cigar manufactory,” and her
son was a telegraph operator for Western Union. John Henry
lived in the house until his death in 1944. The cottage retains
its original slate roof and is well known among old house
enthusiasts for its fanciful millwork trimmed porch.

Built around 1890 as
rental property by Dr.
Thomas Murrell, a
physician who lived
nearby, Murrell later
sold the house to
Stephen and Jennie
Stone. The date of the

sale is unknown;
however, Mrs. Stone

' lived in the house and

MWureell - Stone House
C. 1890
1600 | ouisiana Strect

rented out rooms until the
carly 1980s. The original

Queen Anne style house
was updated in the early 20™ century, as were many houses
of the time, to add the large wrap-around Colonial Revival
porch. Other than this change, the house retains its Queen
Anne elements - textured gable shingles, square and cut-away
bay window treatments, and the original front door and
doorbell. A truly unique feature is its massive single chimney
which serves five individual fireplaces in five different rooms
on two floors,
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structure was bmr in
1911 as a garage
serving the early

the neighborhood.
The building incor-
porates design ele-

ments of what, in the

i 5 192 v -

Welson Auto C@amfmw _ 1 mid-1920s, would be

9 - | come to be known as
Seuthside ‘-_tfja/mge/ ¥ - o

c. 101 i “Art Deco.” In addition

The Warchouse Lofts to serving as one of the

1509 Louisiana Street | area’s first garages, the

: building was also used at
various times as an auto painting company, a bakery, an
electrical supply store, and an auto glass company. In 2000,
the structure was rehabilitated into loft-style apartments — a

historic preservation tool known as “adaptive re-use.” All of

the historical design elements, including the brickwork and
the original industrial windows, have been maintained.
Additionally, the original service bay openings have been fitted
with new windows that match the design of the original
building’s garage doors.

automobile owners of

o T M arsre These two Queen Anne style
. 1890 . houses are mirror images of each
1414 Louisiana Street | other. They were built at the

* 1418 Louisiana Street same time around 1890 by Mrs.

Blakely Turner, Sr. and her two
unmarried daughters, Sue and Bettie. The house at 1414 Louisiana
was sold to M. H. Johnson, a cashier at the Bank of Little Rock.
Miss Bettie
Turner lived at 1418 Louisiana and later rented the house until
1899 when she sold it to R. E. Farrell, a lumberman. The Farrell
family remained in the house until the mid-1940s. Sue Turner

The Johnson family lived in the house until 1917.

later went on to build several more speculative houses in the
neighborhood.

The Abeles Apartments, now
condominiums,  show the
Craftsman style in its multi-
family form. Built around 1910
by Charles Abeles and designed
by Chatles Thompson in the
Arts and Crafts style, the
apartments feature brick walls,
heavy eave brackets and
widespread porches. The
apartments were built at a time

when quality materials and
craftsmanship were highly

Aleles c%;sznen{a‘/
DHouse i of a lumber company, made
€. 1910 | sure quality materials were used

desirable. Abeles, as the owner

1409 Louisiana Steel | throughout rthe project,

including flooring of quarter-
sawn oak and woodwork of solid mahogany. The buildings
are identical and mirror each other, forming the small
courtyard between.



Originally constructed
for Benjamin Fewell,
proprietor of alaundry,
this house is an
excellent example of
the Queen Anne style.
In 1909, the house was
purchased by Louis
and Ella Flickinger.
Mrs. Flickinger, who
could trace  her
ancestry  to  the
FEuropean royal
tamilies, was described

as a “clubwoman’ and

Fewell- ?ﬁi{af&fwz'— Schmand

C)(ﬂf&&t"
C. 1899
1416 Center Sireet

was active in many civic, social, and patriotic organizations.

As was the fate of many of these large neighborhood gems,

the house was converted into apartments in the 1970s. In

the mid-1990s the house was converted back to its original

single-family use. Of particular interest is the house’s square

corner turret; no other frame house in the neighborhood

has such a turret.

This building is an attractive
example of the Gothic
Revival style with a towering,
dramatic spire. From 1888
until 1921, it served as the
Winfield Memorial
Methodist Church. It
became the Annunciation
Greek Orthodox Church in
1921 when the Methodists
moved into a new church
building just two blocks away.
The Greek Orthodox
Church remained in

CI"I'!"-'"{"""M’ Memarial Methadist, e building until 1983

Church
C. 1888-89

Cathedral Square Apartments
1500 Center Street |

when the building was
converted into the
Cathedral Square
Apartments.
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The 2004 Dsiving Tour of Historic Little Rock
Homes in the Quapaw Quarter was made
possible by a joint effort of the Quapaw Quarter
Association and the Little Rock Convention and
Visitors Bureau. Our special appreciation goes
to the caretakers of these fine historic homes
for allowing us to share them with visitors to
Little Rock.

1apaw QuarterAssociation
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The Quapaw Quarter Association (QQA) was
founded in 1968 for the purpose of helping
preserve the historic heritage of Little Rock as
represented by landmark structures and the
neighborhoods they comprise. Through its
efforts, many public buildings and private homes
have been saved, preserved and rehabilitated. For
more information, please call 501-371-0075 or
visit us on the web at www.quapaw.com.

The Little Rock Convention and Visitors Bureau
recognizes the importance of Historic Little Rock
and the city feels proud and fortunate that the
Quapaw Quatter is an area rich in history, unique
older homes and structures, and people as diverse

and exciting as Ametican itself.
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